



August 16, 2018

## NOTICE OF WORKSHOP

### FOR DISCUSSION OF DRAFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO RULE 12.1– PORTABLE EQUIPMENT REGISTRATION, AND RELATED CHANGES TO RULE 12 – REGISTRATION OF SPECIFIED EQUIPMENT

The San Diego County Air Pollution Control District (District) will hold a public workshop to present and receive comments on draft proposed amendments to Rule 12.1 – Portable Equipment Registration, and Rule 12 – Registration of Specified Equipment. Comments or questions may be submitted in writing before or made at the workshop, which is scheduled as follows:

**DATE:** Tuesday, September 25, 2018

**TIME:** 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.

**PLACE:** San Diego County Operations Center  
5500 Overland Avenue, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor, Room 120  
San Diego, CA 92123

Rule 12.1 was adopted in 1997 and provides a voluntary mechanism to register certain portable engines and equipment for use in San Diego County in lieu of obtaining a local permit to operate. This rule provides owners of these portable emission units a faster and less costly way to obtain authority to operate their equipment throughout the county. While registrations are voluntary, the rule does regulate oxides of nitrogen (NO<sub>x</sub>) and particulate matter (PM) emissions from the registered portable equipment. Rule 12 was adopted in conjunction with Rule 12.1 in 1997 and applies to specific types of stationary and portable equipment not eligible to be registered under Rule 12.1.

The draft amendments to Rule 12.1 are proposed for consistency with the most recent changes by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to its statewide Portable Equipment Registration Program (PERP) and Airborne Toxic Control Measure (ATCM) for Diesel Particulate Matter from Portable Engines Rated at 50 Horsepower and Greater. Additional amendments are proposed for consistency with other District Rules and Regulations.

In summary, the draft proposed amendments will:

- Reduce the daily PM emission limit to 82 pounds per project per day;

**OVER**

- Remove daily volatile organic compound (VOC) emission limitations;
- Add new Section (b) Ineligible Equipment;
- Add rock drills and the standards for registration;
- Add new Section (e) Registration of Emission Units;
- Add new Section (f) Administration of Certificate of Registration;
- Include new and revised definitions;
- Remove outdated sections and definitions; and
- Update sections to be consistent with State regulations.

In conjunction with the draft proposed amendments to Rule 12.1, the District also proposes to amend Rule 12 by removing rock drills and adding them to Rule 12.1 instead. This amendment will clarify the conditions for registering or permitting this equipment.

The District requests that workshop participants bring their own copies of the draft proposed amendments to Rules 12.1 and 12. Copies may be downloaded from the District's website at [https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/apcd/en/Rule\\_Development/Workshops.html](https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/apcd/en/Rule_Development/Workshops.html). Those without internet access may contact Janet McCue at (858) 586-2712. If you have any questions concerning the proposal, please contact Joe Herzig at (858) 586-2713 or Angela M. Ortega at (858) 586-2753.

AMO:JH;jlm

## **RULE 12.1. PORTABLE EQUIPMENT REGISTRATION**

(Adopted & ~~and~~ Effective May 21, 1997; Rev. Adopted & Effective *(date of adoption)*)

### **(a) APPLICABILITY**

~~An emission unit used in conjunction with the following portable emission unit source categories shall be eligible for registration under the provisions of this rule and shall be exempt from the requirements of New Source Review rules 20.1 through 20.10. Nothing in this rule shall be construed as requiring registration for a portable emission unit which otherwise is exempt from permit requirements pursuant to Rule 11. Any emission unit registered under this rule shall be precluded from simultaneously obtaining a Permit to Operate.~~

(1) ~~Confined and unconfined abrasive blasting~~ Nothing in this rule shall be construed as requiring registration for a portable emission unit which otherwise is exempt from permit requirements pursuant to Rule 11 (Exemptions from Rule 10 Permit Requirements).

(2) ~~Portable concrete batch plants~~ The following portable emission unit source categories shall be eligible for registration under the provisions of this rule and shall be exempt from the requirements of Rules 20.1 through 20.8 (New Source Review rules):

#### (i) Engines –

Spark ignition or diesel-fired piston-type internal combustion engines, except for those engines associated with marine dredges, used in conjunction with the following types of operations:

- (A) Well drilling, service, or workover rigs,
- (B) Power generation (excluding cogeneration),
- (C) Pumps (including hydroblasters),
- (D) Compressors,
- (E) Pile drivers,
- (F) Welding,

(G) Cranes, or

(H) Woodchippers.

(ii) Equipment Units –

(A) Confined and unconfined abrasive blasting;

(B) Concrete batch plants;

(C) Sand and gravel screening, rock crushing, asphalt cold planers, and unheated pavement crushing and recycling operations; or

(D) Rock drills.

~~(3) Spark ignition or diesel fired piston type internal combustion engines, except for those engines associated with marine dredges, used in conjunction with the following types of operations:~~

~~(i) Well drilling, service, or workover rigs~~

~~(ii) Power generation (excluding cogeneration)~~

~~(iii) Pumps (including hydroblasters)~~

~~(iv) Compressors~~

~~(v) Pile drivers~~

~~(vi) Welding~~

~~(vii) Cranes~~

~~(viii) Woodchippers~~

~~(4) Sand and gravel screening, rock crushing, and unheated pavement crushing and recycling operations~~

(b) **RESERVED- INELIGIBLE EQUIPMENT OR INVALID CERTIFICATES**

(1) Any engine or equipment unit not meeting the definition of “Portable Emission Unit” as defined in Subsection (c)(13) is ineligible for registration under the provisions of this rule.

(2) Generators used to provide primary or supplemental power to a building, facility, stationary source, or stationary equipment are ineligible for registration, except during the following:

- (i) unforeseen interruptions of electrical power from the serving utility;
- (ii) maintenance and repair operations, including maintenance of stationary backup generators that have not experienced an engine failure;
- (iii) electrical upgrade operations including startup, shutdown, and testing that do not exceed 90 calendar days, or a longer period as authorized in writing by the District; or
- (iv) upon approval from the District, engine failure of a stationary backup generator permitted by the District under the following conditions:
  - (A) the holder of the permit for the stationary engine notifies the District of the engine failure within 72 hours from the time the engine failure is discovered;
  - (B) the temporary replacement engine has the same or lower mass per unit time emission rate;
  - (C) the temporary replacement engine complies with all applicable requirements on the permit for the existing stationary engine; and
  - (D) the temporary replacement engine operates for no more than 180 days, or a longer period as authorized in writing by the District.

(3) An engine's and/or equipment unit's Certificate shall be invalid when such equipment is used as an integral part of the operation of a stationary source or to supplement or expand the stationary source's operation.

**(c) DEFINITIONS**

For the purpose of this rule, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) ~~“Administering District” means a district that adopts the provisions contained in Sections (c), (d), (e), and (f) of this rule for one or more of the equipment categories listed in Section (a) of this rule, and in which the owner or operator of a portable emission unit files an application for registration. A district can be an administering district only for the equipment categories for which it has adopted the requirements contained in this rule.~~

(21) **“Area Fugitive Emissions”** means fugitive emissions of particulate matter (PM<sub>10</sub>) which occur as a result of drilling, blasting, quarrying, stockpiling, front end loader operations and vehicular travel of haul roads used to move materials to, from or within any operation.

(2) **“CCR”** means California Code of Regulations.

(3) ~~“District Certificate of Compliance” means an air pollution control district or air quality management district duly organized under the applicable provisions of the California Health and Safety Code statement in a specified format which is completed by an applicant, and which contains statements of compliance with prohibitory rules and conditions of operation applicable to the operation of a registered emission unit.~~

(4) **“Emergency Operation Certificate of Registration” or “Certificate”** means ~~any operation which is necessitated as a result of an emergency declared by an authorized government official~~ a written document issued by the Air Pollution Control Officer, granting authority to operate an emission unit in lieu of a Permit to Operate.

(5) ~~“Emission Unit CFR” means an identifiable process, operation, or piece of process equipment such as an article, machine or other contrivance, which emits or may emit or results in the emissions of any air contaminant directly or as fugitive emissions. For the purposes of this rule, each internal combustion engine constitutes a separate emission unit~~ Code of Federal Regulations.

(6) **“Equivalent Replacement District”** means either of the following: the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District.

(i) ~~The replacement of or modification of an emission unit where the maximum rating of the replacement unit does not exceed that of the unit being replaced, and the replacement unit is equipped with equal or better air pollution control technology.~~

~~(ii) The replacement of or modification of an emission unit where the maximum controlled emission rate of the replacement unit is one half the potential to emit of the existing unit. Limitations on capacity or hours of operation shall not be taken into account in qualifying as an equivalent replacement.~~

(7) **"Exempt Compound Electrical Upgrade"** means ~~the same as defined in Rule 2~~ replacement or addition of electrical equipment and systems resulting in increased generation, transmission and/or distribution capacity.

(8) **"Existing Emission Unit"** means ~~an emission unit that is located in the State of California at any time during calendar year 1993, and for which the owner or operator has applied for registration in accordance with the provisions of this rule no later than six months from the date of adoption of this rule in the participating district in which the emission unit is located or is to first be operated. The owner or operator shall provide sufficient documentation to prove the residency requirement to the satisfaction of the Air Pollution Control Officer. Examples of adequate documentation are existing permits issued by an air pollution control district, district emission inventory records, tax records, and usage or maintenance records. An equivalent replacement unit, replacing an existing emission unit shall be treated as an existing emission unit~~ identifiable process, operation, or piece of process equipment such as an article, machine or other contrivance, which emits or may emit or results in the emissions of any air contaminant directly or as fugitive emissions. For the purposes of this rule, each internal combustion engine constitutes a separate emission unit.

(9) **"Engine"** means any piston-driven internal combustion engine.

(10) **"New Emission Unit Engine Failure"** means ~~any emission unit that does not meet the definition of an existing emission unit~~ failure of an engine's electrical system, emission control module, fuel delivery system, or mechanical parts that necessitates the removal of the engine from service.

(11) **"Participating District Equipment Unit"** means ~~any district that, through rule making, agrees to honor and enforce registrations issued by an administering district. Districts may choose to honor registrations for one or more of the emission unit~~

categories listed in Section (a) equipment that emits PM<sub>10</sub> over and above that emitted from an associated engine.

(912) **“Location”** means, ~~except for oil well drilling, service, or workover rigs,~~ one or more contiguous or adjacent properties which are under the same ownership or operation, or which are owned or operated by entities which are under common control. Contiguous or adjacent properties are properties with two or more parcels of land in actual physical contact, or separated solely by a public roadway or other public right-of-way. ~~For oil well drilling, service, or workover rigs, each well site shall be considered as a separate location.~~

(4213) **“Portable Emission Unit”** means an emission unit that is designed to be and capable of being carried or moved from one location to another. Indicia of portability include, but are not limited to, wheels, skids, carrying handles, dolly, trailer or platform. ~~For the purposes of this rule, dredge engines on a boat or barge are considered portable.~~ An emission unit is not portable if any of the following apply:

(i) The unit, or its replacement, is attached to a foundation or, if not so attached, will reside at the same location for more than 12 consecutive months. Any portable emission unit such as a backup or standby unit that replaces a portable emission unit at a location and is intended to perform the same function as the unit being replaced will be included in calculating the consecutive time period. In that case, the cumulative time of all units, including the time between the removal of the original unit(s) and installation of the replacement unit(s), will be counted toward the consecutive time period; or

(ii) The emission unit remains or will reside at a location for less than 12 consecutive months if the unit is located at a seasonal source and operates during the full annual operating period of the seasonal source. A seasonal source is a stationary source that remains in a single location on a permanent basis (i.e., at least two years) and operates at that single location at least three months each year; or

(iii) The emission unit is moved from one location to another in an attempt to circumvent the portable emission unit residence time requirements.

Days when a portable emission unit is ~~stored in a designated holding or storage area~~ in storage shall not be counted towards the above time limits, provided the emission unit was not operated on that calendar day except for maintenance and was in ~~the designated holding or storage area~~ storage the entire calendar day.



(14) **"Registration"** means the process of obtaining a Certificate of Registration for an emission unit. Registration is the same as "permit" as used in Division 26 of the California Health and Safety Code, Part 3, Chapter 8 and Part 4, Chapter 4, Articles 2 and 4, respectively entitled Hearing Boards, Variances, and Orders of Abatement. The Air Pollution Control Officer and the Hearing Board shall have the same authority concerning registration as with permits, and the owner or operator of registered equipment shall be entitled to the same privileges and rights granted to a permittee.

(15) **"Rental Emission Unit"** means an emission unit temporarily rented or leased to operators other than the owner(s) of the unit.

(16) **"Resident Engine"** means an engine that is operating in the San Diego County prior to January 1, 2018, without a Certificate of Registration.

(17) **"Stationary Source"** means any facility or installation which emits any air contaminant directly or as a fugitive emission. "Facility" and "installation" includes all pollutant emitting activities which:

(i) are located on the same or contiguous property, and are under the same ownership or operation, or are owned or operated by entities which are under common control; and

(ii) belong to the same industrial grouping either by virtue of falling within the same two-digit Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code or by virtue of being part of a common industrial process, manufacturing process, or connected process involving a common raw material.

(18) **"Storage"** means a warehouse, enclosed yard, or other area established for the primary purpose of maintaining registered engines or equipment units when not in operation.

(19) **"Volatile Organic Compound (VOC)"** means the same as defined in Rule 2 (Definitions).

(d) **STANDARDS**

(1) **General Prohibitory Requirements**

(i) ~~Except for emissions from existing emission units, the total NO<sub>x</sub>, or VOC emissions from a portable emission unit shall not exceed 100 pounds during any one day for each pollutant. Emissions from a registered equipment unit, excluding emissions emitted directly from the associated portable engine and area fugitive emissions, shall not exceed 82 pounds per project per day of PM<sub>10</sub>, and 10 tons per year of PM<sub>10</sub> for all projects combined.~~

(ii) ~~The total PM<sub>10</sub> emissions, except area fugitive emissions, from a portable emission unit, including both existing and new emission units, shall not exceed 150 pounds during any one day. Emissions from a registered emission unit shall not exceed 100 pounds of oxides of nitrogen (NO<sub>x</sub>) during any one day.~~

(iii) No air contaminant shall be released into the atmosphere which causes a public nuisance.

(iv) ~~Except for emergency operations, an emission unit shall not be operated within 1,000 feet of any K-12 school unless the applicable public and student notification requirements of California Health and Safety Code Section 42301.6 have been satisfied.~~

(v) ~~When operated as a registered portable emission unit, the actual emissions, except area fugitive emissions, from an emission unit, as verified by the recordkeeping prescribed by this rule, shall not exceed 10 tons per year of any air contaminant in any participating district in which such unit is operated.~~

(2) ~~**Registration Process**~~

(i) ~~If the owner or operator of a portable emission unit operated in conjunction with one of the source categories listed in Section (a) of this rule elects to apply for registration of said emission unit, the owner or operator shall apply for registration at the participating district in which the portable emission unit is located at the time the application for registration is filed. If the emission unit is located outside the state of California, or in a non-participating district, the owner or operator must register the emission unit at the district where the emission unit will first be operated after registration.~~

(ii) ~~The applicant shall provide the administering district with the necessary engineering data, emissions test data, or manufacturer's guarantee to demonstrate compliance with the requirements as specified in Section (d) of this rule.~~

~~(iii) The administering district shall issue registration, deny registration, or deem the application incomplete according to the following schedule:~~

~~(A) within 90 days of the receipt of an application for any applications received on or before November 21, 1997; and~~

~~(B) within 30 days of the receipt of an application for any applications received after November 21, 1997.~~

~~(iv) The administering district may conduct an on-site inspection of the emission unit prior to issuing registration for the unit.~~

~~(v) No later than 10 days after issuance of a registration, the administering district shall forward to all participating districts a copy of the registration and upon request by a participating district, a copy of the application for registration.~~

~~(vi) The owner or operator of a registered emission unit may operate the unit within the boundaries of any participating district provided such unit is operated in compliance with all applicable requirements.~~

~~(vii) The owner or operator shall renew the registration with the administering district on an annual basis including the payment of all applicable fees and a demonstration or certification determining compliance with all applicable requirements.~~

~~(viii) The participating districts shall provide written reports to the administering district describing the nature and outcome of any violation of any applicable requirements by the owner or operator of the registered emission unit. The administering district shall distribute such information to all other participating districts.~~

~~(ix) The participating districts shall provide written reports to the administering district describing any hearing board action concerning the registered emission unit. The administering district shall distribute such information to all other participating districts.~~

~~(x) Equivalent replacement units must go through the entire registration process in order to obtain registration. The owner or operator of any replacement unit shall surrender the registration for the emission unit being replaced.~~

~~(xi) For the purpose of this rule, "permitting" in Division 26 of Health and Safety Code of the State of California, Part 3, Chapter 8 and Part 4, Chapter 4, Articles 2 and 4, respectively, entitled Hearing Board, Variances, and Orders of Abatement, shall be considered to have the same meaning as "registration" as provided in this rule. The Air Pollution Control Officer and the District Hearing Board shall have the same authority concerning registration as with permits, and the owner or operator of a registered emission unit shall be entitled to the same privileges and rights granted to a permittee.~~

~~(xii) The administering district shall notify all participating districts of any changes in the status of registration for an emission unit.~~

**(32) Source Category Requirements**

**(i) Spark Ignition Piston-type Internal Combustion Engines**

(A) The NO<sub>x</sub> emissions shall not exceed 1.5 grams per brake horsepower-hour.

(B) The VOC emissions shall not exceed 1.5 grams per brake horsepower-hour.

(C) The carbon dioxide (CO) emissions shall not exceed 2.0 grams per brake horsepower-hour.

(D) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(E) The engine shall be equipped with a functioning non-resettable hour meter, fuel meter or other operation tracking device approved by the Air Pollution Control Officer.

**(ii) Diesel-fired Piston-type Internal Combustion Engines**

(A) Except as provided in Subsection (d)(2)(ii)(B) below, the compression-ignition engine shall comply with all applicable requirements in the Airborne Toxic Control Measure (ATCM) that governs that specific engine use including, but not limited to, 17 CCR § 93116, Airborne Toxic Control Measure for Diesel Particulate Matter from Portable Engines Rated at 50 Horsepower and Greater, or 17 CCR § 93118.5 Regulations to Reduce Emissions From Diesel Engines on Commercial Harbor Craft Operated within California Waters and 24 Nautical Miles of the California Baseline.

(B) Compression ignition engines that are not subject to any ATCM and are not diesel pile driving hammers shall comply with the following:

(1) The engine shall use CARB diesel fuel; and

(2) The engine shall be equipped with a functioning non-resettable hour meter, fuel meter or other operation tracking device approved by the Air Pollution Control Officer; and

(3) The engine shall be certified according to the requirements of 40 CFR Sections 89 or 1039, as applicable, for the model year, rated engine power, and engine use.

(C) Except for visible emissions from pile drivers, no air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(D) Resident engines not meeting the most stringent federal or State emission standards may apply for a Certificate of Registration as long as the resident engine complies with the applicable ATCM requirements. The Air Pollution Control Officer shall have discretionary approval authority to grant the Certificate of Registration.

**(iii) Confined Abrasive Blasting Operations**

(A) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which ~~is as dark as or darker than~~ has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(B) Particulate matter emissions, except area fugitive emissions, shall be controlled using a fabric or cartridge filter dust collector.

(C) As a part of an application for registration, the applicant shall provide manufacturer's specifications or engineering data to demonstrate a minimum particulate matter arrestance of 99 percent for the dust collection equipment.

(D) Except for vent filters, each fabric dust collector shall be equipped with an operational pressure differential gauge to measure the pressure drop across the filters.

**(iii) Unconfined Abrasive Blasting Operations**

(A) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which ~~is as dark as or darker than~~ has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 2 or equivalent 40 percent opacity.

(B) Only California Air Resources Board (CARB) certified abrasive blasting material shall be used.

(C) The abrasive material shall not be reused.

(D) No air contaminant shall be released into the atmosphere which causes a public nuisance.

(E) All applicable requirements of Title 17 Sections 92000 – 92350 of the ~~California Code of Regulations~~ CCR shall be met.

**(iii) Concrete Batch Plants**

(A) All dry material transfer points shall be ducted through a fabric or cartridge type filter dust collector, except where there are no visible emissions from a transfer point.

(B) All cement storage silos shall be equipped with fabric or cartridge type vent filters.

(C) The silo vent filters shall be maintained in proper operating condition.

(D) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which ~~is as dark as or darker than~~ has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to

a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(E) Open areas shall be maintained adequately wet to prevent fugitive emissions in excess of 20 percent opacity or Ringelmann 1.

(F) Silo service hatches shall be dust-tight.

(G) As a part of an application for registration, the applicant shall provide manufacturer's specifications or engineering data to demonstrate a minimum particulate matter arrestance of 99 percent for the dust collection equipment.

(H) Except for vent filters, each fabric dust collector shall be equipped with an operational pressure differential gauge to measure the pressure drop across the filters.

~~(iv) **Diesel-fired Piston-type Internal Combustion Engines**~~

~~(A) For naturally aspirated engines, the engine injector timing shall be retarded by a minimum of four degrees from the manufacturer's standard timing, or the NO<sub>x</sub> emissions shall not exceed 10 grams per brake horsepower-hour.~~

~~(B) For turbocharged engines, the engine injector timing shall be retarded by a minimum of four degrees from the manufacturer's standard timing, or the NO<sub>x</sub> emissions shall not exceed 7.2 grams per brake horsepower-hour.~~

~~(C) The sulfur content of any diesel fuel used shall not exceed 0.05 percent by weight.~~

~~(D) Particulate matter emissions concentration, excluding area fugitive emissions, shall not exceed 0.10 grain per standard dry cubic feet.~~

~~(E) Except for visible emissions from pile drivers, no air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which is as dark as or darker than Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity. Pile drivers shall comply with the applicable provisions of §41701.5 of the California Health and Safety Code.~~

~~(F) If the NO<sub>x</sub> emission limits, as specified in Subsection (d)(3)(iv)(A) or (d)(3)(iv)(B) are not met, in addition to injector retard, all engines with ratings greater than 50 brake horsepower but equal to or less than 117 brake horsepower that do not qualify as existing emission units shall be equipped with turbochargers.~~

~~(G) If the NO<sub>x</sub> emission limits, as specified in Subsections ((d)(3)(iv)(A) or (d)(3)(iv)(B) are not met, in addition to injector retard, all engines with ratings greater than 117 brake horsepower that do not qualify as existing emission units shall be equipped with turbochargers and aftercoolers.~~

~~(v) **Spark Ignition Piston-type Internal Combustion Engines**~~

~~(A) The NO<sub>x</sub> emissions shall not exceed 1.5 grams per brake horsepower-hour.~~

~~(B) The VOC emissions shall not exceed 1.5 grams per brake horsepower-hour.~~

~~(C) The carbon dioxide (CO) emissions shall not exceed 2.0 grams per brake horsepower-hour.~~

~~(D) Except for pile drivers, no air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which is as dark as or darker than Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.~~

**(vi) Sand and Gravel Screening, Rock Crushing, Asphalt Cold Planers, and Unheated Pavement Crushing and Recycling Operations**

(A) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which ~~is as dark as or darker than~~ has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(B) There shall be no visible emissions beyond the property line of the property on which the equipment is being operated.

(C) Emissions from A~~all~~ screens, crushers, and transfer points shall be ducted through a fabric or cartridge type filter dust collector or the screens, crushers, or transfer points shall be equipped with a wet suppression system which shall be in operation at all times the equipment is in operation and sufficient to ensure that the visible emissions comply with this rule ~~maintaining a minimum moisture content in the material being processed of four percent by weight for material smaller than 1/4 inch.~~



~~(D)~~ Particulate matter emissions from each crusher shall be ducted through a fabric dust collector, or a wet suppression system shall be used which maintains a minimum moisture content in the material being processed of four percent by weight.

~~(E)~~ All conveyors shall be covered, ~~unless or the equipment shall~~ utilize a wet suppression system such that the material being ~~transferred~~ conveyed does not result in any visible particulate matter emissions.

~~(F)~~ All stockpiled material shall be maintained at a minimum moisture content of four percent by weight unless the stockpiled material in a state such that the material does not result in any visible particulate matter emissions.

~~(G)~~ Any source which processes in excess of 150 tons per hour shall comply with all the applicable provisions of the Code of Federal Regulations ~~(CFR)~~ under 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart OOO - Standards of Performance for Nonmetallic Mineral Processing Plants.

~~(H)~~ As a part of application for registration, the applicant shall provide manufacturer's specifications or engineering data to demonstrate a minimum particulate matter arrestance of 99 percent for all dust collection equipment.

~~(I)~~ Except for vent filters, each fabric dust collector shall be equipped with an operational pressure differential gauge to measure the pressure drop across the filters.

(vii) **Rock Drills**

(A) No air contaminant shall be discharged into the atmosphere for a period or periods aggregating more than three minutes in any one hour which has an opacity as to obscure an observer's view to a degree equal to or greater than does smoke of a shade designated Ringelmann 1 or equivalent 20 percent opacity.

(B) There shall be no visible emissions beyond the property line of the property on which the equipment is being operated.

(C) Water injection shall be used at all times when the rock drill is being operated.

(D) Air exhausted from fans and air motors shall be directed so that ground dust does not become airborne.

(e) **GENERAL REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS**  
**REGISTRATION OF EMISSION UNITS**

**(1) Notification**

~~If an emission unit is being relocated into the District and will remain operational within the district for more than 24 hours, the operator shall notify the District within two calendar days from when the unit is first relocated into the District. The notification shall include the following information:~~

~~(i) The general nature of the operations.~~

~~(ii) The estimated duration of operations within the district.~~

~~(iii) The name and phone number of a contact person with information concerning the locations where the emission unit will be operated within the district.~~

~~(iv) The locations, if known, where the emission unit will be operated within the District during the remainder of the current calendar quarter.~~

~~A list of new notifications received by the District will be posted in the District office on a weekly basis. This list will contain any identified equipment locations and will be available for public review during normal business hours. A copy of the list will be provided to any person or interested group who has requested a copy in writing.~~

**(2) Reporting**

~~Within 30 days after the end of every calendar quarter, the operator of a registered portable emission unit, except for rental emission unit, shall notify the district in which the unit was operated of the level of activities within the district during the preceding calendar quarter. The notification shall include the following information:~~

~~(i) The location(s) at which the emission unit was operated, including the dates operated at each location.~~

~~(ii) The type and quantity of materials processed by each emission unit, or the daily hours of operation and the hourly throughput rate for each emission unit.~~

~~(iii) The type and quantity of fuels consumed by each emission unit, or the daily hours of operation and the horsepower or hourly Btu rating for each emission unit.~~

~~(iv) The locations, if known, where the emission unit will be operated within the District during the current calendar quarter.~~

~~A list of quarterly reports received by the District will be posted in the District office on a weekly basis. This list will contain any identified equipment locations and will be available for public review during normal business hours. A copy of the list will be provided to any person or interested group who has requested a copy in writing.~~

### ~~(3) Requirements for a Rental Emission Unit~~

~~(i) The operator of a rental registered emission unit shall be responsible for compliance with the notification and recordkeeping requirements of this rule. The operator must furnish the necessary recordkeeping as required pursuant to Subsections (e)(2)(i), (e)(2)(ii), and (e)(2)(iii) of this rule to the owner of the emission unit.~~

~~(ii) The owner of a rental registered emission unit shall provide the operator with a written copy of applicable requirements of this rule, including the notification and recordkeeping requirements, as a part of the emission unit rental agreement. The owner must maintain written acknowledgment by the operator of receiving the above information for a period of at least two years.~~

~~(iii) The owner of a rental registered emission unit shall compile the records provided by the emission unit operators and shall submit the compiled information to the participating districts in which the rental registered portable emission unit was operated within 30 days after the end of every calendar quarter.~~

### (1) Application for Certificate of Registration

To apply for a Certificate of Registration, an owner or operator shall submit to the District, a completed Permit/Registration application form, a Certificate of Compliance, and any additional information determined by the Air Pollution Control Officer as necessary to demonstrate eligibility for registration. The applicable fees specified in Rule 40 (Permit and Other Fees) shall also be paid. No application for registration shall be considered received unless accompanied by a Certificate of Compliance and the appropriate fees. A separate application is required for each emission unit.

### (2) Action on Applications

(i) The Air Pollution Control Officer shall inform the applicant in writing, within 30 days of receipt of an application for registration, if the application is

complete or incomplete. If incomplete, the written notice shall specify the additional information necessary to complete the application. When the additional information is received and the application is determined complete, the applicant shall be so notified.

(ii) An application for registration shall be canceled if additional information necessary to complete the application is not furnished within 60 days of such request, or if the Air Pollution Control Officer determines that the emission unit is not eligible to be registered under this rule.

(iii) An application for registration shall be withdrawn if the applicant requests such action in writing to the Air Pollution Control Officer. An application that is withdrawn by the applicant shall subsequently be canceled.

(iv) An application for registration shall be denied if the Air Pollution Control Officer finds that the emission unit will not comply with the applicable requirements of Section (d) of this rule, or any other applicable rule of the District Rules and Regulations.

(v) The Air Pollution Control Officer shall issue a Certificate of Registration within a maximum of 90 days after an application for registration is deemed complete if the emission unit meets all applicable requirements of Section (d) of this rule.

(vi) Notice of any action taken shall be deemed to have been given when written notification has been sent to the applicant or the applicant's representative.

**(3) Conditions on Certificate of Registration**

The Air Pollution Control Officer may issue a Certificate subject to temporary or permanent conditions to ensure compliance with District Rules and Regulations and applicable State laws and regulations. Operating a registered emission unit constitutes acceptance of all conditions specified on the Certificate.

**(4) Maintenance of Certificate of Registration**

An owner or operator whose emission unit has been issued a Certificate shall:

(i) Comply with all conditions listed on the Certificate;

(ii) Renew the Certificate annually pursuant to Subsection (f)(1) of this rule;

(iii) Maintain records, as applicable, in accordance with the requirements of Section (g) of this rule;

(iv) Display the current Certificate or a copy of the current Certificate in a clearly visible and accessible place within 25 feet of the emission unit. If the unit is so constructed or operated that the Certificate cannot be so placed, it shall be kept at the operating location and be made readily available to the District at all times;

(v) Not willfully deface, alter, forge, counterfeit or falsify any Certificate issued under this rule; and

(vi) Not change the equipment, or increase the number of conveyors from that set out in the Certificate for the equipment unit unless a complete application for modification has been filed and approved by the District prior to operation.

**(f) ADMINISTRATION OF CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION**

**(1) Renewal of Certificate of Registration**

**(i) Current Certificate of Registration**

Any person who holds a valid Certificate and who desires to maintain the Certificate after the expiration date shall, prior to the expiration date, pay the applicable renewal and processing fees specified in Rule 40.

**(ii) Expired Certificate of Registration**

An expired Certificate may be reinstated within the first six months following the expiration date by paying the applicable renewal, processing fees and the appropriate late fees specified in Rule 40. Any Certificate not reinstated within six months of the expiration date will be retired.

**(2) Change of Status for Certificate of Registration**

**(i) Conversion to Inactive Status**

Any person who holds a valid Certificate and chooses not to operate the emission unit, may apply to the Air Pollution Control Officer for a revised Certificate indicating the unit is to be registered in an inactive status. The application shall be accompanied by the applicable application and renewal fees specified in Rule 40. Operation of an emission unit registered in an inactive status shall constitute a violation of Subsection (e)(4)(i) of this rule. Any portable emission unit registered in an inactive status shall be stored at a fixed address provided to the Air Pollution Control Officer. All Certificates for emission units in inactive status shall be renewed annually.

(ii) Removal of Inactive Status

Any person who holds a valid Certificate for an emission unit in an inactive status and chooses to operate the unit shall first apply for and obtain a revised Certificate indicating the emission unit is now in an active status. The application shall be accompanied by the applicable application and renewal fees specified in Rule 40.

(3) **Transfer of Ownership**

The ownership of a valid Certificate may be transferred by applying for and obtaining a revised Certificate from the Air Pollution Control Officer. The application shall include a completed Permit/Registration application form and a Certificate of Compliance. Such application shall be deemed a temporary Certificate if accompanied by the applicable application fees specified in Rule 40. The temporary Certificate shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of the current Certificate and shall expire upon receipt of a revised Certificate. An application for transfer of ownership shall not be deemed a temporary Certificate if the emission unit is in an inactive status. A new application shall be required if the emission unit has been modified.

(4) **Eligibility of Certificates at Stationary Sources**

An owner or operator of an emission unit with a valid Certificate that is part of a stationary source as determined by the Air Pollution Control Officer shall obtain a Permit to Operate for that emission unit. The Permit to Operate shall supersede the valid Certificate only at that stationary source.

**(g) RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS**

The owner or operator of a registered emission unit shall maintain the applicable records listed below. The records shall be maintained at a central place of business for a minimum of three years and made readily available to the District upon request.

(1) The location(s) at which the emission unit was operated, including the dates operated at each location.

(2) The type and quantity of materials processed by each equipment unit, or the daily hours of operation and the hourly throughput rate for each equipment unit.

(3) The quantity of fuel consumed by each engine, or the daily hours of operation for each engine.

(4) Rental Emission Unit

(i) The operator of a registered rental emission unit shall be responsible for complying with the record keeping requirements of this rule. The operator must furnish the necessary record keeping as required pursuant to Subsections (g)(1), (g)(2), and (g)(3) of this rule to the owner of the emission unit.

(ii) The owner of a registered rental emission unit shall provide the operator with a written copy of applicable requirements of this rule, including record keeping requirements, as a part of the emission unit rental agreement. The owner must maintain written acknowledgment by the operator of receiving the above information for a period of at least three years.

**(fh) TESTING REQUIREMENTS**

Testing to verify compliance with applicable requirements shall be conducted at the expense of the registered owner or operator at the request of ~~a~~the ~~d~~District and in accordance with the methodology prescribed by the ~~d~~District.

The ~~d~~District shall accept prior test results from a test conducted within the last two years provided that operator proves to the satisfaction of the Air Pollution Control Officer that the

prior testing was conducted in accordance with appropriate methods and the conditions under which the unit was tested represent the operating conditions of the emission unit as proposed.

~~(g)~~—**FEES**

~~(1)~~—**Initial Registration Fee**

~~Every applicant for a portable emission unit registration shall pay to the administering district a non-refundable filing fee of \$200 per emission unit.~~

~~(2)~~—**Annual Registration Renewal Fee**

~~On the anniversary of the issuance of a registration, the owner or operator shall pay a renewal fee of \$150 per portable emission unit to the administering district, unless the owner or operator declares non-operational status for the emission unit, in which case the annual registration fee would be as specified in Subsection (g)(5). The administering district may prorate the renewal payments to a single anniversary date for the holder of registrations with more than one anniversary date. If the renewal fee is not paid within 60 days of the due date, the fee shall be increased by 50 percent. Nonpayment of the annual registration renewal fee, including the 50 percent increase within 90 days of the due date will result in cancellation of the registration.~~

~~(3)~~—**Administrative Fees**

~~No administrative fees shall be required to be paid to the administering district for emission units operated in the administering district. If a unit is operated within a participating district, the owner or operator of a registered portable emission unit shall pay to that participating district an administrative fee of \$75 per year for each emission unit. If the administrative fee is not paid within 60 days of the date due, the fee shall be increased by 50 percent. Nonpayment of the increased fee within 90 days of the date due will result in cancellation of the registration.~~

~~(4)~~—**Inspection Fees**

~~No inspection fees shall be required to be paid to the administering district for emission units operated in the administering district. If a unit is inspected by a participating district, the owner or operator of a registered portable emission unit shall pay to the district in which the emission unit is operated an inspection fee of \$75 per year for each emission unit. If the inspection fee is not paid within 60 days of the date due, the fee shall be increased by 50 percent. Nonpayment of the increased fee within 90 days of the date due will result in cancellation of the registration.~~

~~(5)~~—**Non-Operational Emission Unit Fees**

~~Upon receipt of the invoice for annual registration renewal, the registered owner or operator may choose to declare the portable emission unit as non-operational for a non-refundable fee of \$35, in lieu of paying the annual registration fee. To declare an~~



~~emission unit as non-operational, the registered owner or operator shall state in writing the intention to not operate the said emission unit until registration is renewed. Prior to operating the emission unit, the registered owner or operator shall pay the annual registration fee in full to the district.~~

~~(h) —~~ **IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE**

~~The owner or operator of an emission unit subject to the provisions of this rule shall apply for registration according to the following schedule:~~

- ~~(1) — No later than November 21, 1997 for locations.~~
- ~~(2) — Prior to commencing operation for all other emission units.~~

## **RULE 12. REGISTRATION OF SPECIFIED EQUIPMENT**

(Adopted 5/21/97; Rev. Effective 11/15/00; Rev. Effective (date of adoption))

### **(a) APPLICABILITY**

(1) This rule applies to the following emission units:

- (i) Existing internal combustion emergency standby engines.
- (ii) Existing stationary internal combustion engines rated at 200 brake horsepower or less which operate less than 200 hours per calendar year.
- (iii) Asphalt roofing kettles and asphalt roofing day tankers.
- ~~(iv) Rock drills. This does not include any associated power units.~~

(2) This rule does not mandate the registration of any emission unit listed in Subsection (a)(1).

(3) Any emission unit registered under this rule shall be exempt from the requirements of Rule 10 - Permits Required and from the requirements of New Source Review Rules 20.1 through 20.8, inclusive.

(4) Registration under this rule or under District Rule 12.1 (Portable Equipment Registration), or by the California Air Resources Board pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 41752, may be used in lieu of permitting. Any emission unit registered under this rule shall be precluded from simultaneously obtaining a Permit to Operate.

(5) Except as provided in Subsection (a)(3), compliance with this rule shall not exempt any emission unit specified in Subsection (a)(1) from meeting all other applicable requirements of these Rules and Regulations.

### **(b) RESERVED**

### **(c) DEFINITIONS**

For the purposes of this rule, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) **"California Diesel Fuel"** means any fuel that is commonly or commercially known, sold or represented as diesel fuel No. 1-D or No. 2-D, and which meets the requirements specified in Sections 2281 and 2282 of Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations.

(2) **"Certificate of Compliance"** means a statement in a specified format which is completed by an applicant, and which contains prohibitory rules and conditions of operation applicable to the operation of a registered emission unit.

(3) **"Certificate of Registration" or "Certificate"** means a written document issued by the Air Pollution Control Officer, granting authority to operate an emission unit in lieu of a Permit to Operate.

(4) **"Emergency Situation"** means any one of the following:

(i) An unforeseen electrical power failure from the serving utility or on-site electrical transmission equipment.

(ii) An unforeseen flood or fire or a life-threatening situation.

(iii) Operation of emergency generators for Federal Aviation Administration licensed airports for the purpose of providing power in anticipation of a power failure due to severe storm activity.

An emergency situation shall not include operation for purposes of supplying power for distribution to an electrical grid, operation for training purposes, or other foreseeable events.

(5) **"Emergency Standby Engine"** means an engine used exclusively in emergency situations to drive an electrical generator, an air compressor or a water pump, except for operations up to 52 hours per calendar year for non-emergency purposes.

(6) **"Emission Unit"** means the same as defined in Rule 2.

(7) **"Existing Engine"** means an engine which commenced operation in San Diego County on or before November 15, 2000. Engines used to replace an existing engine pursuant to Rule 11 Subsection (d)(5) do not qualify as existing engines.

(8) **"Portable Emission Unit"** means an emission unit that is designed to be and capable of being carried or moved from one location to another. Indicia of portability include, but are not limited to, wheels, skids, carrying handles, dolly, trailer or platform. For the purposes of this rule, dredge engines on a boat or barge are considered portable. An emission unit is not portable if any of the following apply:

(i) The unit, or its replacement, is attached to a foundation or, if not so attached, will reside at the same location for more than 12-consecutive months. Any portable emission unit such as a backup or standby unit that replaces a portable emission unit at a location and is intended to perform the same function as the unit being replaced will be included in calculating the consecutive time period. In that case, the cumulative time of all units, including the time between the removal of the original unit(s) and installation of the replacement unit(s), will be counted toward the consecutive time period; or

(ii) The emission unit remains or will reside at a location for less than 12-consecutive months if the unit is located at a seasonal source and operates during the full annual operating period of the seasonal source. A seasonal source is a stationary source that remains in a single location on a permanent basis (i.e., at least two years) and operates at that single location at least three months each year, or

(iii) The emission unit is moved from one location to another in an attempt to circumvent the portable emission unit residence time requirements.

Days when a portable emission unit is stored in a designated holding or storage area shall not be counted towards the above time limits, provided the emission unit was not operated on that calendar day except for maintenance and was in the designated holding or storage area the entire calendar day.

(9) **"Registered Emission Unit"** means an emission unit that has a valid Certificate of Registration.

(10) **"Registration"** means the process of obtaining a Certificate of Registration for an emission unit. Registration is the same as "permit" as used in Division 26 of the California Health and Safety Code, Part 3, Chapter 8 and Part 4, Chapter 4, Articles 2 and 4, respectively entitled Hearing Boards, Variances, and Orders of Abatement. The Air Pollution Control Officer and the Hearing Board shall have the same authority concerning registration as with permits, and the owner or operator of registered equipment shall be entitled to the same privileges and rights granted to a permittee.

(11) **"Rental Emission Unit"** means an emission unit temporarily rented or leased to operators other than the owner(s) of the unit.

(12) **"Stationary Source" or "Source"** means the same as defined in Rule 2.

(13) **"Stationary Internal Combustion Engine"** means a spark or compression ignited, reciprocating internal combustion engine which is not a portable emission unit.

(d) **REQUIREMENTS**

Emission units registered under this rule shall comply with these rules and regulations and the following requirements, as applicable:

(1) An internal combustion emergency standby engine shall be operated only during emergency situations and for not more than 52 hours per calendar year for non-emergency purposes. Operation for testing or maintenance purposes may be allowed for not more than 100 hours per calendar year with written authorization from the Air Pollution Control Officer, provided that an owner or operator demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Air Pollution Control Officer that such additional operation is necessary.

(2) An engine operating on diesel fuel shall use only California Diesel Fuel.

(3) An engine shall have a non-resettable hour or fuel meter installed that measures elapsed operating time or fuel usage, respectively.

(4) An owner or operator of an engine shall conduct periodic maintenance of the engine as recommended by the engine manufacturer or as specified by any other maintenance procedures approved in writing by the Air Pollution Control Officer. The periodic maintenance shall be conducted at least once each calendar year.

(5) An asphalt roofing kettle or asphalt day tanker shall have an identification tag or serial number stamped, welded or engraved in a visible, accessible location on the kettle or tanker; shall not be operated above 525°F (274°C) and shall be equipped with a functional temperature gauge, temperature control thermostat, and a lid which shall be closed at all times when the unit is operating except for loading asphalt.

(6) A rock drill shall use water injection at all times when operating.

**(e) REGISTRATION OF EMISSION UNITS**

**(1) Application for Certificate of Registration**

To apply for a Certificate of Registration, an owner or operator shall submit to the District, a completed Permit/Registration application form, a Certificate of Compliance, and any additional information determined by the Air Pollution Control Officer as necessary to demonstrate eligibility for registration. The applicable fees specified in Rule 40 shall also be paid. No application for registration shall be considered received unless accompanied by a Certificate of Compliance and the appropriate fees. A separate application is required for each emission unit.

**(2) Action on Applications**

(i) The Air Pollution Control Officer shall inform the applicant in writing, within 30 days of receipt of an application for registration, if the application is complete or incomplete. If incomplete, the written notice shall specify the additional information necessary to complete the application. When the additional information is received and the application is determined complete, the applicant shall be so notified.

(ii) An application for registration shall be canceled if additional information necessary to complete the application is not furnished within 90 days of such request, or if the Air Pollution Control Officer determines that the emission unit is not eligible to be registered under this rule.

(iii) An application for registration shall be withdrawn if the applicant requests such action in writing to the Air Pollution Control Officer. An application that is withdrawn by the applicant shall subsequently be canceled.

(iv) An application for registration shall be denied if the Air Pollution Control Officer finds that the emission unit will not comply with the applicable requirements of Section (d) of this rule, or other applicable District Rules and Regulations.

(v) The Air Pollution Control Officer shall issue a Certificate of Registration within a maximum of 90 days after an application for registration is deemed complete if the emission unit meets all applicable requirements of Section (d) of this rule.

(vi) Notice of any action taken shall be deemed to have been given when written notification has been delivered to the applicant or the applicant's representative.

### **(3) Conditions on Certificate of Registration**

The Air Pollution Control Officer may issue a Certificate subject to temporary or permanent conditions which ensure compliance with these Rules and Regulations and applicable state laws and regulations. Operating a registered emission unit constitutes acceptance of all conditions specified on the Certificate.

### **(4) Maintenance of Certificate of Registration**

An owner or operator whose emission unit has been issued a Certificate shall:

- (i) Comply with all conditions listed on the Certificate;
- (ii) Renew the Certificate annually pursuant to Subsection (f)(1) of this rule;
- (iii) Maintain records, as applicable, in accordance with the requirements of Section (g) of this rule;
- (iv) Display the current Certificate or a copy of the current Certificate in a clearly visible and accessible place within 25 feet of the emission unit. If the unit is so constructed or operated that the Certificate cannot be so placed, it shall be kept on the premises and be made readily available to the District at all times; and
- (v) Not willfully deface, alter, forge, counterfeit or falsify any Certificate issued under this rule.

## **(f) ADMINISTRATION OF CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION**

### **(1) Renewal of Certificate of Registration**

- (i) Current Certificate of Registration

Any person who holds a valid Certificate and who desires to maintain the Certificate after the expiration date shall, prior to the expiration date, pay the applicable renewal and processing fees specified in Rule 40. Any Certificate not reinstated within six months of the expiration date will be retired.

(ii) Expired Certificate of Registration

An expired Certificate may be reinstated within the first six months following the expiration date by paying the applicable renewal and processing fees and the appropriate late fees specified in Rule 40.

**(2) Change of Status for Certificate of Registration**

(i) Conversion to Inactive Status

Any person who holds a valid Certificate and chooses not to operate the emission unit, may apply to the Air Pollution Control Officer for a revised Certificate indicating the unit is to be registered in an inactive status. The application shall be accompanied by the applicable application and renewal fees specified in Rule 40. Operation of an emission unit registered in an inactive status shall constitute a violation of Subsection (e)(4)(i) of this rule. Any portable emission unit registered in an inactive status shall be stored at a fixed address provided to the Air Pollution Control Officer. All Certificates for emission units in inactive status shall be renewed annually.

(ii) Removal of Inactive Status

Any person who holds a valid Certificate for an emission unit in an inactive status and chooses to operate the unit shall first apply for and obtain a revised Certificate indicating the unit is now in an active status. The application shall be accompanied by the applicable application and renewal fees specified in Rule 40.

**(3) Change of Location**

Any person who holds a valid Certificate and who desires to change the location of the registered emission unit shall first apply for and obtain a revised Certificate from the Air Pollution Control Officer. The application shall be accompanied by the applicable application and processing fees specified in Rule 40. This provision shall not apply to any change of location within a stationary source or any change of location for a portable emission unit.

**(4) Transfer of Ownership**

The ownership of a valid Certificate may be transferred by applying for and obtaining a revised Certificate from the Air Pollution Control Officer. The application shall include a completed Permit/Registration application form and a Certificate of Compliance. Such application shall be deemed a temporary Certificate if accompanied by the applicable application fees specified in Rule 40. The temporary Certificate shall

be subject to all the terms and conditions of the current Certificate and shall expire upon receipt of a revised Certificate. An application for transfer of ownership shall not be deemed a temporary Certificate if the emission unit is in an inactive status. A new application shall be required if the emission unit has been modified.

**(g) RECORDKEEPING**

The owner or operator of a registered emission unit shall maintain the applicable records listed below. The records shall be retained on-site for at least three years and be made available to the District upon request.

(1) An owner or operator of an engine shall maintain the following records:

(i) An operating log, which at a minimum, includes the following:

(A) records of periodic engine maintenance including dates maintenance was performed; and

(B) total cumulative hours of operation per calendar year, based on actual readings of the engine hour or fuel meter; and

(C) dates and times of emergency standby engine operation, if applicable. Each entry shall indicate whether the operation was for non-emergency purposes or during an emergency situation and the nature of the emergency, if available. Individual date and time of engine operation records are not required if total operations for any purpose, including emergency situations, do not exceed 52 hours in a calendar year; and

(ii) California Diesel Fuel certifications, if fueled with diesel fuel; and

(iii) A manual of recommended maintenance procedures as provided by the engine manufacturer, or other maintenance procedures as approved in writing by the Air Pollution Control Officer.

(2) An owner or operator of any emission unit specified in Subsection (a)(1) which is operated as a rental emission unit shall maintain the following records, as applicable:

(i) The owner of a rental emission unit shall provide the operator with a copy of the Certificate and the recordkeeping requirements specified in Subsection (g)(1) as part of the emission unit rental agreement. The owner shall maintain written acknowledgment by the operator of receiving the above information.

(ii) During the duration of a rental agreement or contract, the operator of a rental emission unit shall be responsible for compliance with the recordkeeping requirements of this rule and the terms and conditions on the Certificate applicable to operation of the unit. The operator shall furnish the records specified in Subsection (g)(1), to the owner of the rental emission unit upon return of the unit.



~~(h) — COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE~~

~~(1) — Any engine registered pursuant to the provisions of Rule 12 as it existed prior to November 15, 2000, but which no longer qualifies for registration as a result of the amendments to Rule 12 adopted November 15, 2000, and not as a result of a change in the method of operation or physical change to the engine, shall submit an application for a Permit to Operate by May 15, 2001. The applicable requirements of Rule 12 as it existed prior to November 15, 2000, including the renewal and fee requirements, shall remain in effect until a Permit to Operate is issued for the registered engine or a replacement engine.~~

~~(2) — All engines registered after November 15, 2000, shall comply with all applicable requirements of this rule upon startup.~~

~~(3) — Any engine registered pursuant to Rule 12 prior to November 15, 2000, and which remains eligible for registration pursuant to Subsections (a)(1)(i) or (a)(1)(ii), shall comply with the requirements of Subsection (d)(2) by May 15, 2001, and shall comply with the requirements of Subsections (d)(3) and (d)(4) by November 15, 2002.~~